
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Standards Committee 

on Tuesday, 15 April 2014, at 2.00 pm 

in the Georgian Room, Kendal Town Hall 

 
 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Giles Archibald 

Brenda Gray (Chairman) 

John Holmes 

Janette Jenkinson 

Pru Jupe 

Andy Shine (Vice-Chairman) 

Ian Stewart  

 

 

Parish Members 
 

Robert Judson 

Colin Westworth  

Vacancy  

 

 
 
Friday, 4 April 2014 
 
Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Paul Rogers 

Telephone: 01539 793497 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  1 - 6 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 8 October 2013 (copy attached). 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests 
or other registrable interests which have not already been declared in the 
Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a 
disclosable pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 

Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as 
well as any other registrable or other interests. 

If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration 
of interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she 
is advised to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance 
of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  COMPLIMENTS, CUSTOMER FEEDBACK AND COMPLAINTS 
RECEIVED FROM APRIL 2013 TO MARCH 2014  

7 - 16 

 To consider an update on the number of complaints and compliments 
received during 2013/2014. 

 

6  STANDARDS ARRANGEMENTS AND ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14  17 - 58 

 To consider the Council’s Standards arrangements and Annual Report for 
2013/14. 

 

7  STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  59 - 60 

 To consider the Committee’s Work Programme.  

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph 
number) 

There are no items in this part of the Agenda. 

 



5 

08.10.2013 Standards Committee 

 

 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Standards Committee held in the 
Georgian Room, Kendal Town Hall, on Tuesday, 8 October 2013, at 2.00 pm. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

Giles Archibald 
Brenda Gray 
 

John Holmes 
Janette Jenkinson 
 

  
 

Parish Members 
 

Colin Westworth 
 

  
 

  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Pru Jupe, Andy Shine and 
Parish Councillor Robert Judson and Independent Person David Tweddle. 
 

Officers 
 

Janine Jenkinson Assistant Democratic Services Officer 

Debbie Storr Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

  

 
S/9 MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the 
minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 24 June 2013. 
 

S/10 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were made. 
 

S/11 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  

 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there were no items in Part ll of the Agenda. 
 

S/12 STANDARDS PARISH CO-OPTEE VACANCY  

 
The Committee noted the resignation of parish co-optee, David Willacy and 
considered whether the vacancy should be filled. 
 
It was highlighted that if parish members were co-opted on to the Committee, at 
least one parish member was required to be present when matters relating to parish 
councils or their members were being discussed.  Therefore, it was felt beneficial to 
fill the vacancy. 
 
RESOLVED – That the vacancy be advertised to parish clerks. 
 

Item No.2

Page 1



6 

08.10.2013 Standards Committee 

 

 

S/13 RESERVE INDEPENDENT PERSON  

 
Members noted the resignation of the Reserve Independent Person, Pat Ford, and 
consideration was given to whether the vacancy should be filled. 
 
The Committee thanked Mrs Ford for her input and support in her roles as a 
previous Independent Member of the Standards Committee, and more recently as 
Reserve Independent Person. 
 
Due to the current low number of complaints being considered and mutual sharing 
arrangements in place with neighbouring authorities, it was not felt necessary to 
advertise the vacancy at this time. 
 
RESOLVED – That the post of Reserve Independent Person be not advertised and 
remain vacant, and for the situation to be kept under review. 
 

S/14 OPENNESS AND TRANSPARENCY ON PERSONAL INTERESTS: A GUIDE 

FOR COUNCILLORS  

 
A revised plain English guide for councillors on openness and transparency on 
personal interests, and a copy of a revised illustrative text for a Code of Conduct for 
Members and Co-opted Members of local authorities had been published by the 
Department for Communities and Local Government. 
 
It had been revised with new guidance making it clear that Councillors should treat 
Trade Union membership as a personal, non-pecuniary interest which should be 
registered and declared.  Where a Councillor was sponsored by a Trade Union, this 
constituted a disclosable pecuniary interest and as such must be registered and 
declared. 
 
RESOLVED - That the letter from the Department of Communities and Local 
Government and the revised guidance regarding openness and transparency on 
personal interests be noted and a copy be circulated to all District Councillors and 
parish clerks. 
 

S/15 EMPLOYEE REGISTER OF INTERESTS AND GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY  

 
Consideration was given to the Register of Interests and Gifts and Hospitality for 
Employees for the period September 2012 to 30 September 2013. 
 
Under the Officers’ Code of Conduct, officers were required to give declarations of 
interest and gifts and hospitality.  The Code had been reviewed by the Human 
Resources Committee in September 2013 and training was in place for staff on the 
revised Code. 
 
The revisions had taken on board recent internal audit recommendations with 
regards to gifts and hospitality which included recommendations that a standard 
corporate form be introduced and for offers of hospitality that had been declined to 
be included in any declarations. 
 

Page 2



7 

08.10.2013 Standards Committee 

 

 

The Code required members of staff to notify the Monitoring Officer of all gifts and 
hospitality which they had received where the value was £25 or over or where any 
gift or hospitality in connection with their duties was declined. 
 
In the last twelve months, no significant gifts or hospitality had been received, and 
the Monitoring Officer had requested an update of any formal declarations of 
interest.   
 
RESOLVED – That the report and revised Employee Register of Interests and Gifts 
and Hospitality form be noted. 
 

S/16 MEMBERS' REGISTER OF INTERESTS AND GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY  

 
The Committee was updated on recent changes to the Register of Interests and 
Gifts and Hospitality form for Members. 
 
Audit Committee on 24 September 2013 had received an internal audit report on 
Gifts and Hospitality as part of the agreed Audit Plan for 2013/14.  The report 
concluded that the current controls provided reasonable assurance but made some 
recommendations to strengthen the process.   
 
One of the recommendations was that the Members’ Register of Interest form be 
amended to make clear that the disclosure of the details of any gifts or hospitality 
received should be included, to ensure full compliance with the Code of Conduct 
and the Council’s Constitution.  Consequently the form had been revised to take 
this on board.  The opportunity had also been taken to devise an addendum form 
for any future gifts/hospitality received/declined, and for any changes to other 
interests.   
 
Whilst there was no requirement within the Council’s Code of Conduct to declare 
any gifts or hospitality that may be declined, internal audit had suggested that this 
might expose the risk that unsuitable offers of gifts and hospitality were not 
recorded, which, if present, might protect Members’ interests and reputation should 
it be necessary.   
 
In addition, it had been recommended that the Council should inform the public on 
its website that previous registers of interest were available for inspection.  The 
website was being amended to include reference to the fact that previous 
declarations forms could be inspected on request. 
 
RESOLVED – That the revised Members’ Register of Interests and Gifts and 
Hospitality form be noted. 
 

S/17 CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL  

EMPLOYEES  

 
The Officer Code of Conduct was applicable to all employees.  It had last been 
reviewed in July 2011.  Efforts had been made to simplify and shorten the 
document whilst retaining the essential elements. 
 

Page 3



8 

08.10.2013 Standards Committee 

 

 

The changes were as follows:- 
 

• It had been re-named the Code of Conduct for South Lakeland District Council 
Employees.  This was because work carried out by the Investors in People 
Working Group had identified that many members of staff thought of themselves 
as ‘employees’ rather than ‘officers’. 

• The Principles of the Committee of Standards in Public Life had been 
summarised rather than fully set out. 

• A form had been added for the registration of employees’ interests and 
declarations. 

• It had been made clear at Section 8 that the requirement to register interests in 
land only related to those interests which might conflict with the Council’s 
interest.  This would avoid the need for all staff to register their home if they 
lived within South Lakeland. 

• The Equal Opportunities section had been simplified to refer to and commit to 
legislation that currently existed.  References to documents that might be 
amended on annual basis had been removed. 

 
RESOLVED – That the proposed revisions to the document previously known as 
the Officers’ Code of Conduct be noted. 
 

S/18 PROTOCOL ON MEMBER/EMPLOYEE RELATIONS  

 
The Protocol had last been reviewed in July 2011.  A periodic review had taken 
place and consideration had been given to the necessity for changes to the 
document.  A suggested model Officer/Members Protocol had been prepared 
recently by Dickinson Bond Solicitors on behalf of the Association of Council 
Secretaries and Solicitors.  The proposed South Lakeland District Council Protocol 
on Members/Employee Relations was based on the Dickinson Bond model Protocol 
but had been suitably adapted. 
 
RESOLVED – That Full Council be recommended to approve the draft South 
Lakeland District Council Protocol on Members/Employee Relations. 
 

S/19 COMPLIMENTS, CUSTOMER FEEDBACK AND COMPLAINTS RECEIVED 

FROM APRIL 2013 TO SEPTEMBER 2013  

 
Members were updated on the number of complaints and compliments received 
since April 2013. 
 
In a drive to improve customer service, complaints data had been monitored for a 
number of years.  All complaints and compliments were recorded and tracked using 
the Council’s performance management software (Covalent) and managed by the 
Customer Services Team. 
 
The number of complaints had reduced over recent months.  In the six months to 
September there had been 57 Stage 1 complaints, compared to 61 over the same 
period in the previous year. 
 

Page 4



9 

08.10.2013 Standards Committee 

 

 

The average time taken to respond to a complaint had been five working days, 
96.5% of complaints received were answered within the 10 working day target.  All 
complaints had been acknowledged in one working day. 
 
Members were advised that the simplified complaints process which had operated 
since October 2011 had helped to significantly reduce the number of complaints 
progressing to Stage 3 with only three reaching this stage during the first six 
months of 2013/14. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

S/20 LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL REVIEW 2012/13  

 
The Committee was presented with the Annual Report of the Local Government 
Ombudsman for 2012/13. 
 
The number of complaints going to the Ombudsman had reduced considerably over 
the last year, especially when compared with the national average.  This had been 
helped by the review of the Council’s complaints handling procedures. 
 
In 2012/13 four complaints had been received about the Local Authority. 
 
Members said that for future Annual Review Summary Reports they would like to 
see more detailed feedback regarding the nature of complaints provided by the 
Local Government Ombudsman. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be received. 
 

S/21 STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  

 
The Monitoring Officer provided a general overview of Member complaints 
considered during the previous three months.  There had been no referrals for 
investigation. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Work Programme be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 3.05 pm 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

15 April 2014 

Report on Compliments, Customer Feedback and 
Complaints received from April 2013 to March 2014 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Sue Sanderson – Environment and People 
Portfolio Holder  

REPORT FROM: Simon McVey – Assistant Director Policy and 
Performance 

REPORT AUTHOR: Caroline Metcalfe – Contact Centre Manager 

WARDS: All 

KEY DECISION NO: not applicable 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 Feedback is very important to help us better understand our customers' needs 
and concerns and can also bring light to possible avenues of service 
improvement. This report presents an update to Members on the number of 
complaints and compliments received during 2013/2014. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that the report be received.  

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 In our drive to improve our customer service, complaints data has been 
monitored for a number of years. All complaints and compliments are 
recorded and tracked using the Council’s performance management software 
(Covalent) and managed by the Customer Services Team. 

3.2 Previous reports on this subject have shown a decrease in the number of 
complaints being received. This trend has not continued as during the second 
half of 2013/2014 the number of complaints has increased. This is shown in 
the data attached at Appendix 1. 

3.3 This is, however, a very positive report in relation to complaints. During 
2013/14 there have only been 118 complaints received compared to 95 in the 
previous financial year. There is no obvious reason for this increase; the 
reasons for complaints are wide and varied and there is no underlying trend. 
However compared to the annual number of customer interactions this is a 
very small percentage.  

3.4 This report is showing that the average time taken to respond to a complaint 
is now 5 working days (previous years have been 7, 12 and 15 working days) 
and 108 of the 118 complaints (91.5%) were answered within the 10 working 
day target. This is being achieved by the proactive monitoring of complaints 

Item No.5

Page 7



 

 

and the willingness of departments to respond in a timely manner. All 
complaints have been acknowledged in 1 working day. 

3.5 The simplified complaints process has also helped to significantly reduce the 
number of complaints progressing to the Chief Executive with only 5 reaching 
this stage during 2013/2014 (previous years have been 14, 26 and 20). 

3.6 Appendix 2 shows a more detailed breakdown of the stage 1 complaints by 
department and also by complaint category. This data is useful to identify 
trends and assist with service improvements. The highest number of 
complaints continues to be in relation to council policies. Neighbourhood 
Services received the highest number of complaints which is indicative of the 
large number of public interactions but the department also receives the 
highest number of compliments. 

3.7 There have been 20 compliments which are shown in Appendix 3. 

3.8 Further work is being undertaken in relation to customer feedback following 
an Overview and Scrutiny Task and Finish report in relation to measuring 
customer satisfaction. The findings will be considered by Cabinet in May and 
reported back to a future meeting of this committee. 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 None.  

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 There are no alternative options – the report is to note. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 Links to the Council’s priorities in relation to customer satisfaction. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 Not applicable. 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 Not applicable. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 Not applicable. 

7.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 Data from the reports will help inform service improvements 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 Not carried out for this report but an Equalities Impact Assessment was 
completed for the complaints policy and customer access strategy. 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Reputational as a result 
of complaints 

Reputation of the 
council is diminished 

Regular review of 
complaints policy and 
proactive monitoring of 

Page 8



 

 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

complaints.  

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – c.metcalfe@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Complaints Data  1 April 2013 – 31 March 2014 

2 Complaints Data  1 April 2013 – 31 March 2014 

3 Compliments Data  1 October 2013 – 31 March 2014 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Previous Reports to Standards Committee 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

01/04/2014 01/04/2014 01/04/2014 03/04/2014 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Standards 
Committee 

Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 15/04/2014 n/a 01/04/2014 01/04/2014 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

Use these 
boxes for 
additional 
tracking 

Use these 
boxes for 
additional 
tracking 

n/a n/a n/a   

 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013
Month           

2013/2014
No

Average 

Working 

Days to 

Respond

Number 

Outside 10 

Working Day 

Target

Percentage 

Responded 

in 10 

Working 

Days

9 9 9 April 9 6 1 88.9%

7 30 12 May 7 8 1 85.7%

7 16 12 June 9 4 0 100.0%

23 55 33 Quarter 1 25 6 2 92.0%

15 10 10 July 11 6 0 100.0%

10 13 10 August 7 4 0 100.0%

7 21 8 September 14 3 0 100.0%

32 44 28 Quarter 2 32 5 0 100.0%

16 16 4 October 12 8 4 66.7%

10 13 8 November 13 6 2 84.6%

9 9 2 December 6 4 1 83.3%

35 38 14 Quarter 3 31 6 7 77.4%

26 4 5 January 9 6 1 88.9%

14 11 10 February 14 3 0 100.0%

13 15 5 March 7 2 0 100.0%

53 30 20 Quarter 4 30 4 1 96.7%

143 167 95 Annual 118 5 10 91.5%

2012/2013
Month           

2013/2014
No

Average 

Working 

Days to 

Respond

Number 

Outside 10 

Working Day 

Target

Percentage 

Responded 

in 10 

Working 

Days

6 Quarter 1 5 7 2 60.0%

5 Quarter 2 3 8 0 100.0%

3 Quarter 3 1 13 1 0.0%

1 Quarter 4 4 6 1 75.0%

Annual 13 8 4 69.2%

2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013
Month           

2013/2014
No

Average 

Working 

Days to 

Respond

Number 

Outside 15 

Working Day 

Target

Percentage 

Responded 

in 15 

Working 

Days

5 10 6 Quarter 1 0 0 0 100.0%

5 4 5 Quarter 2 3 9 0 100.0%

6 6 2 Quarter 3 0 0 0 100.0%

4 6 1 Quarter 4 2 9 0 100.0%

20 26 14 Annual 5 9 0 100.0%

Stage 1 - Formal Complaints by Month

Stage 2 - Escalation to Assistant Director / Director by Quarter

No Comparable Data

Stage 3 - Escalation to Chief Executive by Quarter

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

Assistant Director No

Average 

Working Days 

to Respond

Number 

Outside 10 

Working Day 

Target

Percentage 

Responded in 

10 Working 

Days

Neighbourhood 

Services
61 6 6 90.2%

Policy and 

Performance
9 3 0 100.0%

Resources 29 4 2 93.1%

Strategy and 

Planning
19 5 2 89.5%

Annual 118 5 10 91.5%

Total
Neighbourhood 

Services

Policy and 

Performance
Resources

Strategy and 

Planning

50 20 6 13 11

10 4 1 2 3

28 16 2 7 3

16 9 0 6 1

4 3 0 0 1

7 7 0 0 0

1 0 0 1 0

0 0 0 0 0

2 2 0 0 0

118 61 9 29 19

Staff behaviour (e.g. rude, unhelpful)

Customer Access

Work undertaken by our contractors 

Discrimination or bias

Failure to fulfil statutory obligations 

Failure to carry out a service.

Stage 1 - Formal Complaints by Assistant Director

Stage 1 - Formal Complaints by Category

Complaint  Category

Complaint about any of the Council policies

Decision making and implementation 

Service standards or quality issues

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3

Policy & Partnerships Kendal Midday Concert Club

Neighbourhood Services Successful Recruitment

Total  Compliments 20

Neighbourhood Services Thank you

Neighbourhood Services Thank You

Policy & Partnerships Town Hall Event

Neighbourhood Services Drains

Neighbourhood Services Good Service

Neighbourhood Services Thank you

Policy & Partnerships Thank You

Resources Very Big Thank You

Neighbourhood Services Christmas Recycling Collection

Neighbourhood Services Thank You

Policy & Partnerships Thank you

Policy & Partnerships Green Waste Collection

Neighbourhood Services Summerhill Nursing Home

Resources Quality of Service

Neighbourhood Services Job well done

Compliments

Strategy & Planning Removal of Mattresses

Neighbourhood Services Jamaica Inn

Neighbourhood Services South Lakeland Funding Fair

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

15 April 2014 

Standards Arrangements and Annual Report 2013/14 
 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Debbie Storr – Director of Policy and Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Debbie Storr 

WARDS: All 

KEY DECISION NO: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 That the Committee consider the Council’s Standards arrangements and 
Annual Report for 2013/14, and provides any feedback or recommendations 
that it would wish to make. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1.1 It is recommended that the Committee – 
 

(1) considers the Council’s Standards arrangements, including 
frequency and terms of reference for the Standards Committee, 
and provides any feedback or recommendations that it wishes to 
make; and  

(2) approves the Annual Report  2013/14 for referral to Full Council. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 The Council has been operating under revised Standards Arrangements since 
June 2012 following implementation of the relevant provisions of the Localism 
Act 2011.  Since then, complaints to date have been considered under the 
delegated powers of the Monitoring Officer, and there have been no referrals 
to the Standards Committee. 

3.2 The Annual Report, attached at appendix 3, details the work of the Committee 
over the last 12 months. It also provides details of the number of complaints 
received by the Monitoring Officer as well as the roles of the Committee, the 
Independent Person and the Monitoring Officer, and the work of the 
Committee throughout the year.  Also attached to this report are the Council’s 
Standards arrangements (appendices 1(1) - (4) and terms of reference for the 
Committee (appendix 2). 

Item No.6

Page 17



 

 

3.3 The Chairman of Standards Committee has requested that, in the light of the 
new way of operating, the Committee debate the role of the Committee 
moving forward. 

3.4  Suggested issues the Committee may wish to consider are – 

o The Committee’s Terms of Reference; 
o The frequency of meetings;  
o The role of parish representatives; and 
o The role of the substitute Independent Person. 

3.5 Members are requested to consider the arrangements and approve the 
Annual Report 2013/14 for referral to Council.   

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 Not applicable – the Committee is requested to consider the report and 
provide comments as it feels appropriate.  

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 The report is to consider. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 Ethical standards underpin the governance controls of the Council. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 There are no finance or resource issues to raise at this stage.  

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 Not applicable. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 Any changes to Standards arrangements must be in accordance with the 
relevant legislative requirements.   

7.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 There are no issues to raise. 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 There are no issues to raise. 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

That there are 
inappropriate standards 
controls within the 
council. 

Lack of probity and high 
standards. 

Regular review of 
arrangements and 
appropriate codes and 
protocols in place 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – d.storr@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Page 18



 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT 

Appendix No.  

1(1)-(4) Standards arrangements 

2 Standards Committee terms of reference 

3 Standards Annual Report 

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Committee 
Chairman 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

N Sent to Chair of 
Committee 
31/3/14 

Y 3/4/14 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 15/4/14 n/a n/a Author 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

n/a n/a n/a   

 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1(1) 

1 

 

South Lakeland District Council 
Arrangements for dealing with standards allegations under 
the Localism Act 2011 
 
 
1 Context 

 
These “Arrangements” set out how you may make a complaint that an elected or co-opted 
member of this authority [or of a parish council within its area] has failed to comply with the 
authority’s Code of Conduct, and sets out how the authority will deal with allegations of a 
failure to comply with the authority’s Code of Conduct. 
 
Under Section 28(6) and (7) of the Localism Act 2011, the Council must have in place 
“arrangements” under which allegations that a member or co-opted member of the authority 
[or of a parish council within the authority’s area], or of a Committee or Sub-Committee of 
the authority, has failed to comply with that authority’s Code of Conduct can be investigated 
and decisions made on such allegations.  
 
Such arrangements must provide for the authority to appoint at least one Independent 
Person, whose views must be sought by the authority before it takes a decision on an 
allegation which it has decided shall be investigated, and whose views can be sought by 
the authority at any other stage, or by a member [or a member or co-opted member of a 
parish council] against whom an allegation as been made. 
 

2 The Code of Conduct 
 
The Council has adopted a Code of Conduct for members, which is attached as Appendix 
One to these arrangements and available for inspection on the authority’s website and on 
request from Reception at the Council Offices, South Lakeland House, Lowther Street, 
Kendal. 
 
Each parish council is also required to adopt a Code of Conduct. If you wish to inspect a 
Parish Council’s Code of Conduct, you should inspect any website operated by the parish 
council and request the parish clerk to allow you to inspect the parish council’s Code of 
Conduct. 
 

3 Making a complaint 
 
If you wish to make a complaint, please write or email to – 
 

Monitoring Officer 
South Lakeland District Council, 
South Lakeland House,  
Lowther Street, 
Kendal, 
Cumbria, LA9 4UQ 
 

Or – 
 

monitoringofficer@southlakeland.gov.uk 
 

Page 21



APPENDIX 1(1) 

2 

 

The Monitoring Officer is a senior officer of the authority who has statutory responsibility for 
maintaining the register of members’ interests and who is responsible for administering the 
system in respect of complaints of member misconduct. 
 
In order to ensure that we have all the information which we need to be able to process 
your complaint, please complete and send us the model complaint form, which can be 
downloaded from the authority’s website, next to the Code of Conduct, and is available on 
request from Reception at the main council Offices. 
 
Please do provide us with your name and a contact address or email address, so that we 
can acknowledge receipt of your complaint and keep you informed of its progress. If you 
want to keep your name and address confidential, please indicate this in the space 
provided on the complaint form, in which case we will not disclose your name and address 
to the member against whom you make the complaint, without your prior consent. The 
authority does not normally investigate anonymous complaints, unless there is a clear 
public interest in doing so. 
 
The Monitoring Officer will acknowledge receipt of your complaint within 5 working days of 
receiving it, and will keep you informed of the progress of your complaint. 
 

4 Will your complaint be investigated? 
 
The Monitoring Officer will review every complaint received and, after consultation with the 
Independent Person, take a decision as to whether it merits formal investigation. This 
decision will normally be taken within 10 working days of receipt of your complaint. Where 
the Monitoring Officer has taken a decision, he/she will inform you of his/her decision and 
the reasons for that decision. 
 
In certain cases the Monitoring Officer may refer particular complaints to the Standards 
Committee where he/she feels that it would be inappropriate for him/her to take a decision 
on it, for example where he/she has previously advised the member on the matter or the 
complaint is particularly sensitive. 
 
Where he/she requires additional information in order to come to a decision, he/she may 
come back to you for such information, and may request information from the member 
against whom your complaint is directed. Where your complaint relates to a Parish 
Councillor, the Monitoring Officer may also inform the Parish Council of your complaint and 
seek the views of the Parish Clerk before deciding whether the complaint merits formal 
investigation. 
 
In appropriate cases, the Monitoring Officer may seek to resolve the complaint informally, 
without the need for a formal investigation. Such informal resolution may involve the 
member accepting that his/her conduct was unacceptable and offering an apology, or other 
remedial action by the authority. Where the member or the authority make a reasonable 
offer of local resolution, but you are not willing to accept that offer, the Monitoring Officer 
will take account of this in deciding whether the complaint merits formal investigation. 
  
If your complaint identifies criminal conduct or breach of other regulation by any person, the 
Monitoring Officer has the power to call in the Police and other regulatory agencies. 
 

5 How is the investigation conducted? 
 
The Council has adopted a procedure for the investigation of misconduct complaints, which 
is attached as Appendix Two to these arrangements. 
 

Page 22



APPENDIX 1(1) 

3 

 

If the Monitoring Officer decides that a complaint merits formal investigation, he/she will 
appoint an Investigating Officer, who may be another senior officer of the authority, an 
officer of another authority or an external investigator. The Investigating Officer will decide 
whether he/she needs to meet or speak to you to understand the nature of your complaint 
and so that you can explain your understanding of events and suggest what documents the 
Investigating Officer needs to see, and who the Investigating Officer needs to interview. 
 
The Investigating Officer would normally write to the member against whom you have 
complained and provide him/her with a copy of your complaint, and ask the member to 
provide his/her explanation of events, and to identify what documents he needs to see and 
who he needs to interview. In exceptional cases, where it is appropriate to keep your 
identity confidential or disclosure of details of the complaint to the member might prejudice 
the investigation, the Monitoring Officer can delete your name and address from the papers 
given to the member, or delay notifying the member until the investigation has progressed 
sufficiently. 
 
At the end of his/her investigation, the Investigating Officer will produce a draft report and 
will send copies of that draft report, in confidence, to you and to the member concerned, to 
give you both an opportunity to identify any matter in that draft report which you disagree 
with or which you consider requires more consideration. 
 
Having received and taken account of any comments which you may make on the draft 
report, the Investigating Officer will send his/her final report to the Monitoring Officer. 
 

6 What happens if the Investigating Officer concludes that there is no evidence of a 
failure to comply with the Code of Conduct? 
 
The Monitoring Officer will review the Investigating Officer’s report and, (following 
consultation with the Independent Person), if he/she is satisfied that it is sufficient, the 
Monitoring Officer will write to you and to the member concerned and to the Parish Council, 
where your complaint relates to a Parish Councillor, notifying you that he/she is satisfied 
that no further action is required, and give you both a copy of the Investigating Officer’s final 
report. If the Monitoring Officer is not satisfied that the investigation has been conducted 
properly, he/she may ask the Investigating Officer to reconsider his/her report. 
 

7 What happens if the Investigating Officer concludes that there is evidence of a failure 
to comply with the Code of Conduct? 
 
The Monitoring Officer will review the Investigating Officer’s report and will then either send 
the matter for local hearing before the Hearings Panel or, after consulting the Independent 
Person, seek local resolution. 
 
7.1 Local Resolution 

 
The Monitoring Officer may consider that the matter can reasonably be resolved 
without the need for a hearing. In such a case, he/she will consult with the 
Independent Person and with you as complainant and seek to agree what you 
consider to be a fair resolution which also helps to ensure higher standards of 
conduct for the future. Such resolution may include the member accepting that 
his/her conduct was unacceptable and offering an apology, and/or other remedial 
action by the authority. If the member complies with the suggested resolution, the 
Monitoring Officer will report the matter to the Standards Committee and the Parish 
Council for information, but will take no further action. However, if you tell the 
Monitoring Officer that any suggested resolution would not be adequate, the 
Monitoring Officer will refer the matter for a local hearing.-  

Page 23



APPENDIX 1(1) 

4 

 

7.2 Local Hearing 
 
If the Monitoring Officer considers that local resolution is not appropriate, or you are 
not satisfied by the proposed resolution, or the member concerned is not prepared 
to undertake any proposed remedial action, such as giving an apology, then the 
Monitoring Officer will report the Investigating Officer’s report to the Hearings Panel 
which will conduct a local hearing before deciding whether the member has failed to 
comply with the Code of Conduct and, if so, whether to take any action in respect of 
the member. 
 
The Council has agreed a procedure for local hearings, which is attached as 
Appendix Three to these arrangements. 
 
Essentially, the Monitoring Officer will conduct a “pre-hearing process”, requiring the 
member to give his/her response to the Investigating Officer’s report, in order to 
identify what is likely to be agreed and what is likely to be in contention at the 
hearing, and the Chair of the Hearings Panel may issue directions as to the manner 
in which the hearing will be conducted. At the hearing, the Investigating Officer will 
present his/her report, call such witnesses as he/she considers necessary and 
make representations to substantiate his/her conclusion that the member has failed 
to comply with the Code of Conduct. For this purpose, the Investigating Officer may 
ask you as the complainant to attend and give evidence to the Hearings Panel. The 
member will then have an opportunity to give his/her evidence, to call witnesses and 
to make representations to the Hearings Panel as to why he/she considers that 
he/she did not fail to comply with the Code of Conduct.  
 
The Hearings Panel, with the benefit of any advice from the Independent Person, 
may conclude that the member did not fail to comply with the Code of Conduct, and 
so dismiss the complaint. If the Hearings Panel concludes that the member did fail 
to comply with the Code of Conduct, the Chair will inform the member of this finding 
and the Hearings Panel will then consider what action, if any, the Hearings Panel 
should take as a result of the member’s failure to comply with the Code of Conduct. 
In doing this, the Hearings Panel will give the member an opportunity to make 
representations to the Panel and will consult the Independent Person, but will then 
decide what action, if any, to take in respect of the matter. 
 

8 What action can the Hearings Panel take where a member has failed to comply with 
the Code of Conduct? 
 
The Council has delegated to the Hearings Panel such of its powers to take action in 
respect of individual members as may be necessary to promote and maintain high 
standards of conduct. Accordingly the Hearings Panel may – 
 
8.1 Publish its findings in respect of the member’s conduct; 
 
8.2 Send a formal letter to the Member; 

 
8.3 Report its findings to Council or to the Parish Council for information; 

 
8.4 Recommend to the member’s Group Leader (or in the case of un-grouped 

members, recommend to Council or to Committees) that he/she be removed from 
any or all Committees or Sub-Committees of the Council; 

 
8.5 Recommend to the Leader of the Council that the member be removed from the 

Cabinet, or removed from particular Portfolio responsibilities; 

Page 24



APPENDIX 1(1) 

5 

 

 
8.6 Instruct the Monitoring Officer to or recommend that the Parish Council arrange 

training for the member; 
 
8.7 Remove or recommend to the Parish Council that the member be removed from all 

outside appointments to which he/she has been appointed or nominated by the 
authority or by the Parish Council; 

 
8.8 Withdraw or recommend to the Parish Council that it withdraws certain facilities 

provided to the member by the Council; or 
 

8.9 Exclude or recommend that the Parish Council exclude the member from the 
Council’s offices or other premises, with the exception of meeting rooms as 
necessary for attending Council, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings. 
 

The Hearings Panel has no power to suspend or disqualify the member or to withdraw 
members’ or special responsibility allowances. 
 

9 What happens at the end of the hearing? 
 
At the end of the hearing, the Chair will state the decision of the Hearings Panel as to 
whether the member failed to comply with the Code of Conduct and as to any actions which 
the Hearings Panel resolves to take. 
 
As soon as reasonably practicable thereafter, the Monitoring Officer shall prepare a formal 
decision notice in consultation with the Chair of the Hearings Panel, and send a copy to 
you, to the member and to the Parish Council, make that decision notice available for public 
inspection and report the decision to the next convenient meeting of the Council. 
 

10 Who are the Hearings Panel? 
 
The Hearings Panel is a Sub-Committee of the Council’s Standards Committee. The 
Standards Committee has decided that it will comprise three members of the Council, 
appointed on a political balance basis.  
 
The Independent Person is invited to attend all meetings of the Hearings Panel and his/her 
views are sought and taken into consideration before the Hearings Panel takes any 
decision on whether the member’s conduct constitutes a failure to comply with the Code of 
conduct and as to any action to be taken following a finding of failure to comply with the 
Code of Conduct. 
 

11 Who is the Independent Person? 
 
The Independent Person is a person who has applied for the post following advertisement 
of a vacancy for the post, and is appointed by a positive vote from a majority of all the 
members of Council. 
 
A person cannot be “independent” if he/she – 
 
11.1 Is, or has been within the past 5 years, a member, co-opted member or  officer of 

the authority; 
 

11.2 Is or has been within the past 5 years, a member, co-opted member or officer of a 
parish council within the authority’s area, or 

Page 25



APPENDIX 1(1) 

6 

 

 
11.3 Is a relative, or close friend, of a person within paragraph 11.1 or 11.2 above. For 

this purpose, “relative” means – 
 
11.3.1 Spouse or civil partner; 

 
11.3.2 Living with the other person as husband and wife or as if they were civil 

partners; 
 

11.3.3 Grandparent of the other person; 
 

11.3.4 A lineal descendent of a grandparent of the other person; 
 

11.3.5 A parent, sibling or child of a person within paragraphs 11.3.1 or 11.3.2; 
 

11.3.6 A spouse or civil partner of a person within paragraphs 11.3.3, 11.3.4 or 
11.3.5; or 
 

11.3.7 Living with a person within paragraphs 11.3.3, 11.3.4 or 11.3.5 as 
husband and wife or as if they were civil partners. 

 
Please note, however, that transitional arrangements allow the Council to appoint a person 
as an Independent Person who, although not a member of the Standards Committee at the 
time of appointment (or thereafter), has held such a post during the 5 years ending 30 June 
2012. 
 

12 Revision of these arrangements 
 
The Council’s Standards Committee may by resolution agree to amend these 
arrangements, and the Council has delegated to the Chair of the Hearings Panel the right 
to depart from these arrangements where he/she considers that it is expedient to do so in 
order to secure the effective and fair consideration of any matter. 
 

13 Appeals 
 
There is no right of appeal for you as complainant or for the member against a decision of 
the Monitoring Officer or of the Hearings Panel 
 
If you feel that the authority has failed to deal with your complaint properly, you may make a 
complaint to the Local Government Ombudsman.  
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix One  The authority’s Code of Conduct 
 
Appendix Two  Procedure for Investigations 
 
Appendix Three Procedure for Hearings 
 

Page 26



1 

 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

 

FOR MEMBERS AND CO-OPTED MEMBERS OF THE AUTHORITY 

 

1. South Lakeland District Council (“The Authority”) has adopted the following code 

dealing with the conduct that is expected of members and co-opted members of the 

Authority (“Members”) when they are acting in that capacity as required by section 

27 of the Localism Act 2011 (“the Act”). 

 

2. The Authority has a statutory duty under the Act to promote and maintain high 

standards of conduct by Members and the Code sets out the standards that the 

Authority expects Members to observe. 

 
3. The Code is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all the obligations that are 

placed on Members.  It is the responsibility of individual Members to comply with 

the provisions of the Code as well as such other legal obligations as may apply to 

them from time to time. Failure to do so may result in a sanction being applied by 

the Authority.  Failure to take appropriate action in respect of a Disclosable 

Pecuniary Interest may result in a criminal conviction and a fine of up to £5,000 

and/or disqualification from office for a period of up to 5 years.   

 
4. The code is intended to be consistent with the seven principles as attached to this 

code and applies whenever a person is acting in his/her capacity as a Member of 

the Authority or co-opted member in the conduct of the Authority’s business or 

acting as a representative of the Authority. 

 
5. When acting in your capacity as a Member   

 
(1) You must act solely in the public interest and should never improperly confer 

an advantage or disadvantage on any person or act to gain financial or other 

material benefits for yourself, your family, a friend, a close associate, an 

employer or a business carried on by you. 

 

(2) You must not place yourself under a financial or other obligation to outside 

individuals or organisations that may influence you in the performance of 

your official duties.  

 
(3) You must not disclose any information given to you as a Member in breach 

of any confidence. 

 
(4) You must not bring your office or your Authority into disrepute. 

 
(5) You must treat others with respect and promote equality by not 

discriminating unlawfully against any person, and by treating people with 

respect, regardless of their sex, race, age, religion, gender, sexual 

orientation or disability.  You should respect the impartiality and integrity of 

the authority’s statutory officers and its other employees.  

 
(6) When carrying out your public duties you must make all choices, such as 

making public appointments, awarding contracts or recommending 

individuals for rewards or benefits on merit. 

 

Appendix 1(2) 

Page 27



2 

 

(7) You are accountable for your decisions to the public and you must co-

operate fully with whatever scrutiny is appropriate to your office. 

 
(8) You must be as open as possible about your decisions and actions and the 

decisions and actions of your authority and should be prepared to give 

reasons for those decisions and actions. 

 
(9) You must declare any private interests, both disclosable pecuniary interests 

and any other registrable interests, that relate to your public duties and must 

take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects the public 

interest, including registering and declaring interests in a manner which 

conforms with the procedures set out below. 

 
(10) You must ensure, when using or authorising the use by others of the 

resources of your authority, that such resources are not used improperly for 

political purposes (including party political purposes) and you must have 

regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of Publicity made under the 

Local Government Act 1986. 

 

(11) You must promote and support high standards of conduct when serving in 

your office. 

 

Registering and declaring disclosable pecuniary and other registrable interests 

 

(1) You must, within 28 days of taking office as a member or co-opted member, notify 

your authority’s Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest as defined 

by regulations made by the Secretary of State, where the pecuniary interest is 

yours, your spouse’s or civil partner’s, or is the pecuniary interest of somebody with 

whom you are living with as a husband or wife, or as if you were civil partners. 

These interests and those at (2) below are shown attached to this code. 

 

(2) In addition, you must, within 28 days of taking office as a member or co-opted member, 

notify your authority’s Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary or non-pecuniary 

interest which your authority has decided should be included in the register.  

 
(3) If an interest has not been entered onto the authority’s register, then the member 

must disclose the interest to any meeting of the authority at which they are present, 

where they have a disclosable interest in any matter being considered and where 

the matter is not a ‘sensitive interest' as described by the Localism Act 2011. 

 

(4) Following any disclosure of an interest not on the authority’s register or the subject 

of pending notification, you must notify the monitoring officer of the interest within 

28 days beginning with the date of disclosure. 

 

(5) Unless dispensation has been granted, you may not participate in any discussion 

of, vote on, or discharge any function related to any matter in which you have a 

pecuniary interest as defined by regulations made by the Secretary of State.  

Additionally, you must observe the restrictions your authority places on your 

involvement in matters where you have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest as 

defined by your authority.      

  

Page 28



3 

 

 

SEVEN GENERAL PRINCIPLES OF CONDUCT 

 

 

Selflessness 

1. Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. They should 

not do so in order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves, their 

family, or their friends.   

 

Integrity 

2. Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial or other 

obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might seek to influence them 

in the performance of their official duties. 

 

Objectivity 

3. In carrying out public business, including making public appointments, awarding 

contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards or benefits, holders of public 

office should make choices on merit. 

 

Accountability 

4. Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and actions to the public 

and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their office.  

 

Openness 

5. Holders of public office should be as open as possible about the decisions and 

actions that they take.  They should give reasons for their decisions and restrict 

information only when the wider public interest clearly demands 

 

Honesty 

6. Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating to their 

public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects 

the public interest 

 

Leadership 

7. Holders of public office should promote and support these principles by leadership 

and by example, and should act in a way that secures or preserves public 

confidence. 

 

  

Page 29



4 

 

PECUNIARY AND OTHER REGISTRABLE INTERESTS 

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (as defined by regulations) 

1. Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain.  

2. Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 
from the relevant authority) made or provided within the relevant period in 
respect of any expenses incurred by M in carrying out duties as a member, or 
towards the election expenses of M. (This includes any payment or financial 
benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour 
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.  

3. Details of any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body in 
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the relevant authority –  

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and  

(b) which has not been fully discharged.  

4. Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the relevant 
authority.   

5. Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
the relevant authority for a month or longer.   

6. Details of any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge) –  

(a) The landlord is the relevant authority; and 

(b) The tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest. 

7. Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where 

(a) That body (to M’s knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
the relevant authority; and 

(b) Either –  

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class.  

OTHER REGISTRABLE INTERESTS 

These interests are what the Council has determined should be entered into the authority’s 
register of interests 

8.  Details of any body of which you are a member, or in a position of general 
control or management, and to which you are appointed or nominated to by the 
District Council.    

Page 30



5 

 

9 Details of any body of which you are a member, or in a position of general 
control or management, and which_ 

(a) Exercises function of a public nature; 

(b) Is directed towards charitable purposes; or 

(c) Is a body which includes as one of its principal purposes influencing public 
opinion or policy (this includes political parties or trade unions).  

10. Details of any persons from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an 
estimated value of at least £50. (You must register any gifts or hospitality worth 
£50 or over that you receive personally in connection with your official duties).  

 

 

 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Procedure for formal Investigation of Referred Complaints                                                                                                   June 2012 
 

1

 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

PROCEDURE FOR INVESTIGATION OF MISCONDUCT COMPLAINTS 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

1. This procedure applies to the investigation of misconduct complaints where a decision 
has been taken to refer for formal investigation.  
 

APPOINTMENT OF INVESTIGATING OFFICER 

 
2. Once a decision has been made to refer a complaint for local investigation, the 

Monitoring Officer will appoint an Investigating Officer in respect of the allegation, and 
instruct him/her to conduct an investigation of the allegation and to make a report to the 
Monitoring Officer. The Investigating Officer may be an Officer of the Council, the Officer 
of another Local Authority, or an external Investigating Officer. 

 
The Investigating Officer may appoint persons to assist him/her in the conduct of his/her 
functions and may obtain such professional advice as may be necessary for the conduct 
of the investigation. 
 

NOTIFYING THE MEMBER 

 
3. The Monitoring Officer shall notify the Member in writing: 
 

i. that the allegation has been referred for formal investigation; 
ii. the identity of the person making the allegation [unless identification of the 

complainant might prejudice the investigation or put the complainant at 
risk]; 

iii. of the conduct which is the subject of the allegation; 
iv. of the procedure which will be followed in respect of the allegation; and 
v. of the identity of the Investigating Officer. 

 
NOTIFYING THE PARISH OR TOWN COUNCIL CLERK 

 

4. Where the allegation relates to the conduct of a Member of a Parish or Town Council in 
his/her capacity as such, at the same time as notifying the Member, the Monitoring 
Officer will notify the Clerk to the Parish or Town Council concerned in writing of the 
investigation. 

 
NOTIFYING THE COMPLAINANT 

 

5. At the same time as notifying the Member, the Monitoring Officer will notify the person 
who made the allegation in writing of the matters set out at paragraph 3 i, iii – v. 
 

CONDUCT OF INVESTIGATION 

 

6. [a] Purpose of the Investigation 
The purpose of the Investigating Officer’s investigation is to enable him/her to 
prepare and present to the Monitoring Officer a report with sufficient information 
to determine whether the Member has acted in breach of the Code of Conduct or 
local protocol and, where there has been a breach of the Code of Conduct or 

Appendix 1(3) 

Page 33



 

Procedure for formal Investigation of Referred Complaints                                                                                                   June 2012 
 

2

local protocol, whether any action should be taken in respect of the Member or in 
consequence of the breach, and what any action should be. 
 

[b] Termination of the Investigation 
 The Investigating Officer may terminate his/her investigation at any point, where 

he/she is satisfied that he/she has sufficient information to enable him/her to 
report to the Monitoring Officer and to enable the Monitoring Officer to come to a 
considered decision on the report. 

 
 [c] Additional Matters 

 Where, in the course of his/her investigation, the Investigating Officer becomes 
aware of any other matter which appears to him/her to indicate a breach of the 
Code of Conduct or local protocol by the Member other than the breach which 
he/she is currently investigating the Investigating Officer shall either: 

 
i. [where the additional matter relates to an apparent breach of the 

Authority’s Code of Conduct by a member of the principal authority] report 
the matter to the Monitoring Officer who will provide the Member with 
details of the matter in the form set out in paragraph 6 iii and iv above and 
invite the Member to provide a statement as to why the additional matter 
does not constitute a breach of the Code of Conduct. The Monitoring 
Officer will then determine, in consultation with the Independent Person, 
whether to request the Investigating Officer to investigate the additional 
matter; 

 
ii. [where the additional matter constitutes an apparent breach of the 

Authority’s protocols but not a breach of the Code of Conduct by a 
Member of the principal authority] report the matter to the Monitoring 
Officer who will provide the Member with details of the matter in the form 
set out in paragraph 6 iii and iv above and invite the Member to provide a 
statement as to why the additional matter does not constitute a breach of 
the Authority’s local protocols. The Monitoring Officer, in consultation with 
the Independent Person, will then take a decision whether to request the 
Investigating Officer to consider the matter and report to the Monitoring 
Officer as appropriate.  

 
iii. [where the additional matter relates to an apparent breach of the Code of 

Conduct or a local protocol by a Parish or Town Councillor] notify the 
Clerk to the Town or Parish Council of the additional matter and any 
action taken.  

 
[d] Following notification to the Member, the Investigating Officer will identify an 

initial list of persons to be interviewed, organisations from whom information is to 
be sought and documents to be inspected as part of the investigation. The 
Investigating Officer may supplement or amend this list at any stage of the 
investigation. 

 
[e] Production of Documents, Information and Explanations 
 

i. In the course of the investigation, the Investigating Officer and any person 
authorised on his/her behalf may make such enquiries of any person or 
organisation, and request any person or organisation to provide any 
document or information which is in his/her/its possession or control, or 

Page 34



 

Procedure for formal Investigation of Referred Complaints                                                                                                   June 2012 
 

3

provide any explanation, as he/she thinks necessary for the purposes of 
carrying out the investigation. 

 
ii. In the course of the investigation, the Investigating Officer and any person 

authorised on his/her behalf may require any authority of which the 
Member is a member to provide any document which is in his/her/its 
possession or control which he/she thinks necessary for the purposes of 
carrying out the investigation. 

 
[f] Interviews 

i. In the course of the investigation the Investigating Officer may request 
any person to attend and appear before him/her or otherwise provide any 
information, document or explanation for the purpose of paragraph 10[e], 
as he/she thinks necessary for the purposes of carrying out the 
investigation. 

ii. Representation 
Any person who appears before the Investigating Officer can arrange to 
be accompanied at their own expense by a Solicitor or friend. 

iii. Notes of Interviews 
Where practicable, following the interview the Investigating Officer shall 
produce a written note of the material points of the interview, provide two 
copies of that note to the person interviewed and ask them to return one 
copy signed as a correct record of the interview, with such corrections or 
amendments as they may feel necessary for that purpose. 

 

DRAFT REPORT 

 

11. [a] Where the Investigating Officer is satisfied that he/she has sufficient information 
to meet the requirement set out in paragraph 10[a], or has obtained as much 
information as is likely to be reasonably capable of being obtained, he/she will 
prepare a draft report setting out: 

 
i. the details of the allegation; 
ii. the relevant provisions of statute, of the Code of Conduct and any 

relevant local protocols; 
iii. the Member’s initial response to notification of the allegation [if any]; 
iv. the relevant information, advise and explanations which he/she has 

obtained in the course of the investigation; 
v. a list of any documents relevant to the matter; 
vi. a list of those persons whom he/she has interviewed and those 

organisations from whom he/she has sought information; 
vii. a note of any person or organisation who has failed to co-operate with the 

investigation and the matter in which they have failed to co-operate; 
viii. a statement of his/her draft findings of fact; 
ix. the reasoning for his/her decision; 
x. his/her conclusion as to whether the Member has or has not failed to 

comply with the Code of Conduct for Members of any authority or a local 
protocol; and 

xi. any recommendations which the Investigating Officer is minded to make 
to any authority concerned for reviewing or reconsidering any decision 
which was the subject of the breach of the Code of Conduct or local 
protocol, for rectifying any deficiency in the authority’s decision-making 
procedures or for preventing or deterring any breach of the Code of 
Conduct or local protocol or to remedy the position of any person who 

Page 35



 

Procedure for formal Investigation of Referred Complaints                                                                                                   June 2012 
 

4

may have suffered detriment or injustice as a result of the breach. Where 
the allegation relates to a Parish or Town Councillor, such 
recommendations would be recommendations which the Investigating 
Officer would recommend be made to the Parish or Town Council. 

 
[b] The draft report should also state that the report does not necessarily represent 

the Investigating Officer’s final finding, and that the Investigating Officer will 
present a final report to the Monitoring Officer once he/she has considered any 
comments received on the draft report. 

 
[c] The Investigating Officer shall then send a copy of his/her draft report in 

confidence to the Member and the Complainant and request that they send any 
comments thereon to him/her within 14 days. 

 
[d] The Investigating Officer may send a copy of, or relevant extracts from his/her 

draft report in confidence to any person on whose evidence he/she has relied in 
compiling the draft report, and request that they send any comments thereon to 
him/her within 14 days. 

 
FINAL REPORT 

 

12. [a] After the expiry of that period [or such extended period as the Investigating 
Officer may allow], the Investigating Officer shall reconsider and amend his/her 
draft report in the light of any comments received, and produce and send to the 
Monitoring Officer his/her final report. The final report should state that the report 
represents the Investigating Officer’s final findings and should have appended to 
it copies of any documents which the Investigating Officer has relied on in 
reaching his/her conclusions, such as background documents or telephone 
conversations, letters and notes of interviews with witnesses. 

 
 [b] The Monitoring Officer will review the Investigating Officer’s report and, if he/she 

is satisfied that the Investigating Officer’s report is sufficient he/she shall then: 
  

i. where the final report concludes that there has not been a failure to 
comply with the Code of Conduct for Members or a local protocol, will 
write to the Complainant and the Member concerned and to the Parish 
Council, where the complaint relates to a Parish Councillor, notifying them 
that he/she is satisfied that no further action is required and provide a 
copy of the final report. 

 
ii. where the final report concludes that there has been a failure by the 

Councillor to comply with the Code of Conduct for Members or with a 
local protocol, he/she will either send the matter for local hearing before 
the Hearings Panel or, after consulting the Independent Person, seek 
local resolution.  

 
(c) If the report is dealt with by local resolution then that is the end of the matter. 
 
(d) If it is determined that there should be a local hearing then the procedure for 

Local Hearing will apply.   
 

 

 

Page 36



 

Procedure for local hearings                                                                                                                                     June 2012 
 

1

APPENDIX 1 (4) 
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
PROCEDURE FOR LOCAL HEARING OF ALLEGATIONS ABOUT THE 

PERSONAL CONDUCT OF COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
1. Where there is no local resolution of complaints following evidence of a failure to comply 

with the Code of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer will report the Investigating Officer’s 
report to the Hearings Panel which will conduct a local hearing before deciding whether 
the member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct and, if so, whether to take 
any action in respect of the member.  
 

2. The person[s] making the complaint will be referred to in this procedure as the 
Complainant and the person against whom the complaint is made will be referred to as 
the Member. The allegation will be heard by the Standards Committee or a Sub-
Committee or Hearings Panel of the Standards Committee. 

 
PRE-HEARING PROCESS  
 
3. Upon receipt of the final report of the Investigating Officer including a finding that the 

Member failed to comply with the Code of Conduct for Members and it is considered that 
a local resolution is not possible and that the matter should be considered at a formal 
hearing the Monitoring Officer shall arrange for the Hearings Panel to consider the 
matter. 

 
4. Where the Monitoring Officer is the Investigating Officer he/she must arrange for a 

separate legal advisor to the Panel to be appointed in respect of the allegation. 
 
NOTIFYING THE MEMBER AND COMPLAINANT 
 
5. Within five working days of the receipt of the Investigating Officer’s report the Monitoring 

Officer shall send a copy of the report to the Member and the Complainant, making the 
provision of the report conditional upon any appropriate undertaking of confidentiality. 
The Chairman of the Standards Committee and Independent Person shall be informed 
of the allegation by the Monitoring Officer, as well as any Parish or Town Council Clerk 
where the allegation relates to conduct of a Member in his/her capacity as a member of 
a Parish or Town Council. 

 
6. The Member shall be asked for a written response, within fifteen working days of the 

receipt of the report.  The response shall set out the reply to the Investigating Officer’s 
report and state whether or not he/she: 

 
i. disagrees with any of the findings of fact in the Investigating Officer’s report, 

including the reasons for any disagreement; 
 

ii. wants to be represented, at his/her own expense, at the hearing by any other 
person; 

 
iii. wants to give evidence to the Hearings Panel, either verbally or in writing; 

 
iv. wants to call relevant witnesses to give evidence to the Hearings Panel; 

 

Page 37



 

Procedure for local hearings                                                                                                                                     June 2012 
 

2

v. wants any part of the hearing to be held in private; 
 

vi. wants any part of the Investigating Officer’s report or other relevant 
documents to be withheld from the public. 

 
7. The Member shall be informed that if, at the meeting of the Panel, he/she seeks to 

dispute any matter contained in the Investigating Officer’s report without having 
previously notified the Monitoring Officer of the intention to do so the Committee may 
either [a] adjourn the meeting to enable the Investigating Officer to provide a response, 
or [b] refuse to allow the disputed matter to be raised. 

 
8. Upon receipt, the Monitoring Officer shall invite the relevant Investigating Officer to 

comment, within ten working days, on the Member’s response, and to say whether or not 
he/she: 

 
i. wants to be represented or be present at the hearing; 
 

ii. wants to call relevant witnesses to give evidence or submit written or other 
evidence to the Panel; 

 
iii. wants any part of the hearing to be held in private; 

 
iv. wants any part of the Investigating Officer’s report or other relevant 

documents to be withheld from the public. 
 
9. Upon receipt of the Investigating Officer’s response, the Monitoring Officer will consider 

the responses of the Member and the Investigating Officer and request the Monitoring 
Officer to set a date for the hearing in consultation with the Chairman and all Members. 

 
10. The Members and the Investigating Officer are entitled to request that any witnesses 

they want should be called. However, the Chairman of the Hearing may limit the number 
of witnesses to be called, if he/she believes the number requested is unreasonable and 
that some witnesses will simply be repeating the evidence of earlier witnesses, or else 
not providing evidence that will assist the Committee to reach its decision. 

 
11. Nothing in this procedure shall limit the Chairman of the Hearing from requesting the 

attendance of any additional witnesses whose evidence he/she considers would assist 
the Committee to reach its decision. 

 
12. The Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Chairman and Independent Person, will: 
 

i. confirm a date, time and place for the Hearing, which must be within three 
months from the date of the Investigating Officer’s report was received; 

 
ii. confirm the main facts of the case that are agreed; 

 
iii. confirm the main facts that are not agreed; 

 
iv. provide copies of any written evidence to the relevant parties; 

 
v. confirm which witnesses will be called by the parties; 

 
vi. provide the parties with a copy of the proposed procedure for the Hearing, 

specifying which parts of the matter, if any, may be considered in private; and 

Page 38



 

Procedure for local hearings                                                                                                                                     June 2012 
 

3

 
vii. ensure the appropriate information, with the agenda, is provided to everyone 

involved in the Hearing at least two weeks before the proposed date of the 
Hearing. 

 
THE HEARING 
 
13. The Hearings Panel shall decide, on a balance of probabilities, whether the complaint[s] 

is or are upheld upon the evidence presented to it. 
 
14. Each Panel Member shall have one vote, and all matters/issues shall be decided by a 

simple majority of votes cast. If there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the 
Chairman shall have the second and casting vote. 

 
15. The meeting of the Panel will be open to the public and press unless confidential 

information or exempt information is likely to be disclosed. 
 
PROCEDURE AT THE HEARING 
 
16. The initial order of business at the meeting shall be as follows:- 
 

i. Establishing whether the Panel is quorate; 
 

ii. Declarations of interest; 
 

iii. Introductions 
 

iv. Consideration as to whether to adjourn or to proceed in the absence of the 
Member, if the Member is not present; 

 
v. Consideration of any procedural issues and, in particular, any representation 

from the Investigating Officer and/or the Member as to reasons why the 
Committee should exclude the press and public and determination as to 
whether to exclude the press and public. 

 
17. The purpose of the Hearing is to determine the facts at issue and what action, if any, 

should be taken. An inquisitorial approach will be adopted by the Panel members in 
seeking information and clarifying facts and issues. The Chairman will control the 
procedure and evidence presented at the Hearing, including the questioning of 
witnesses. 

 
18. The Panel members may at any time seek legal advice from their advisor. [Such advice 

will be notified to the public in the presence of the Investigation Officer and the Member.] 
 
19. The procedure will be as follows, subject to the Chairman being able to make changes 

as he or she thinks fit in order to ensure a fair and efficient hearing. 
  

Page 39



 

Procedure for local hearings                                                                                                                                     June 2012 
 

4

PROCEEDING IN THE ABSENCE OF THE MEMBER 

 

20. If the Member is not present at the start of the Hearing: 
 

i. The Chairman will ask the Monitoring Officer whether the Member has 
indicated his/her intention not to attend the Hearing; 

 
ii. The Hearings Panel shall then consider any reasons which the Member has 

provided for not attending the Hearing and shall decide whether it is satisfied 
that there is sufficient reason for such failure to attend; 

 
iii. If the Panel is satisfied with such reasons, it shall adjourn the Hearing to 

another date; 
 

iv. If the Panel is not satisfied with such reasons, or if the Member has not given 
any such reasons, the Panel shall decide whether to consider the matter and 
make a determination in the absence of the member or to adjourn the 
Hearing to another date. 

 
21. Presentation by the Investigating Officer 

 
21.1 The Investigating Officer will present the evidence which is relevant to the 

matter. The Investigating Officer may introduce any witness required to 
substantiate any matter contained in the report which has been disputed and 
present any other relevant evidence. 

 
21.2 The Member or his/her representative may ask questions of the Investigating 

Officer or any witness. 
 
21.3 The Panel members or Independent Person may ask questions of the 

Investigating Officer or any witness. 
 
22. Presentation by the Member 

 
22.1 The Member or his/her representative will present the evidence which is 

relevant to the matter. The Member or his/her representative may introduce 
witnesses or present any other relevant evidence. 

 
22.2 The Investigating Officer may ask questions of the Member, or any witness. 
 
22.3 The Panel members or Independent Person may ask questions of the 

Member or any witness. 
 

22.4 The Investigating Officer and then the Member or his/her representative will 
be given the opportunity to sum up. 

 
23. Decision by the Hearings Panel 

 
23.1 The Panel will consider in private, with the Independent Person, all the 

evidence which it has heard in order to establish its findings of fact. 
  

Page 40



 

Procedure for local hearings                                                                                                                                     June 2012 
 

5

23.2 At any stage in the consideration of the matter the Panel may return to ask 
further questions of the Investigating Officer or the Member or seek further 
information. The other party will be given an opportunity to comment upon the 
questions asked or the responses made. 

 
23.3 The Panel may seek legal advice at any time. Such advice may be given in 

the presence of the Investigating Officer and the Member if appropriate. 
 

23.4 At the conclusion of their deliberations, the Chairman will advise the Member 
and the Investigating Officer of their findings and whether the Code of 
Conduct has been breached. 

 
23.5 If the Panel concludes that the Member has acted in breach of the Code 

representations will be invited from the Investigating Officer and the Member 
as to what action, if any, it should take. The Panel may ask questions of the 
Member and the Investigating Officer. 

 
24. The Panel, having heard any representations, will consider what actions, if any, to take. 

 
The findings that the Panel may make are: 
 
a) That there has been no breach of the Code; 
 
b) That the Member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct, but that no 

action needs to be taken; 
 

c) That the Member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct and the 
Panel will: 

 
� Publish its findings in respect of the Member’s conduct; 
� Send a formal letter to the Member 
� Report its findings to the Council or Parish Council for information; 
� Recommend to the member’s Group Leader (or in the case on an 

ungrouped member(s), recommend to Council or Committees) that 
he/she be removed from any or all committees or sub-committees of the 
Council; 
� Recommend to the Leader of the Council that the member be removed 

from the Executive or removed from particular Portfolio responsibilities; 
� Instruct the Monitoring Officer to recommend that the Parish Council 

arrange training for the member; 
� Remove or recommend to the Parish Council that the member be 

removed from all outside appointments to which he/she has been 
appointed or nominated by the authority or by the Parish Council; 
� Withdraw or recommend to the Parish Council that it withdraws certain 

facilities provided to the member by the Council; or 
� Exclude or recommend that the Parish Council exclude the member from 

the Council’s offices or other premises, with the exception of meeting 
rooms as necessary for attending Council, Committee and Sub-
Committee meetings. 

 
The Hearings Panel has no power to suspend or disqualify the member or to withdraw 
members’ or special responsibility allowances.  
 
 

Page 41



 

Procedure for local hearings                                                                                                                                     June 2012 
 

6

25. In deciding what penalty to set, the Committee will consider all relevant circumstances. 
  

26. The Chairman will announce the decision of the Committee, the action, if any, it is 
proposed to take and the reasons for the decision. 
 

27. The Committee will then consider in open session whether there are any 
recommendations which should be made to any Authority concerned arising from the 
consideration of the allegation. 

 
APPEAL 
 
28 There is no right of appeal against the decision of the Hearing Panel.  

 
NOTICE OF FINDINGS 
 
29. A full written decision in draft [including the reasons for it] will be prepared as soon as 

practicable. The draft decision will be forwarded to the Chairman of the Committee for 
approval. 

 
30. Once approved and as soon as reasonably practicable after the Hearing the full written 

decision will be forwarded to the Member, the Independent Person, the Complainant, the 
Investigating Officer and any other Authority concerned. 

 

31. If the Hearing Panel wishes to publish its finding, the Monitoring Officer, subject to 
paragraph 32, shall arrange for a summary of the findings to be published in such 
manner as the Hearings Panel may determine. 

 

32. Where the Panel determines that there has not been a breach of the Code of Conduct, 
the notice shall: 

 
i. State that the Panel found that the Member had not failed to comply with the 

Code of Conduct and shall give its reasons for reaching that finding; and 
 

ii. Not be published in the local newspaper if the Member so requests. 

 

33. Where the Panel determines that there has been a failure to comply with the Code of 
Code but no action is required, the notice shall: 

 
i. State that the Panel found that the Member had failed to comply with the 

Code of Conduct but that no action needs to be taken in respect of that 
failure; 

 
ii. Specify the details of the failure; 

 
iii. Give reasons for the decision reached; and 

 
 
34. Where the Panel determines that there has been a failure to comply with the Code of 

Conduct and that a sanction should be imposed, the notice shall: 
 
i. State that the Panel found that the Member had failed to comply with the 

Code of Conduct; 
 

ii. Specify the details of the failure; 

Page 42



 

Procedure for local hearings                                                                                                                                     June 2012 
 

7

 
iii. Give reasons for the decision reached; 

 
iv. Specify the sanction imposed;  

 
 
35. Copies of the agenda, reports and minutes of a Hearing, as well as any background 

papers, apart from sections of documents relating to parts of the Hearing that were held 
in private, shall be available for public inspection for six years after the Hearing. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



7 Standards 
Committee 

7 District members – see 
Article 9 of the 
constitution 

The promotion and 
maintenance of high 
standards of conduct for 
elected and co-opted 
members of the Council 

 

   To advise the council on 
the adoption or revision 
of its Code of Conduct 
and additional roles and 
functions as detailed in 
Article 9.03 

 

   To monitor and advise 
the council about the 
operation of the Code of 
Conduct in the light of 
best practice, changes in 
the law, relevant 
guidance. 

 

   Assistance to members 
and co-opted members 
of the authority 

 

51 
 

Committee Membership Functions Delegation of 
Functions 

   To ensure that all 
members of the Council 
have access to training 
in all aspects of the 
member Code of 
Conduct, that this 
training is actively 
promoted, and that 
members are aware of 
the standards expected 
from local councillors 
under the Code 

 

APPENDIX 2 

Page 45



Committee Membership Functions Delegation of 
Functions 

   In consultation with the 
Independent Person, to 
grant dispensations up to 
a maximum of 4 years in 
the following 
circumstances –  
1. That he/she considers 
that without the 
dispensation the number 
of persons prohibited 
from participating in any 
particular matter would 
be so great a proportion 
of the body transacting 
the business as to 
impede the transaction of 
the business. 
2. That, without the 
dispensation, the 
representation of 
different political groups 
on the body transacting 
any particular business 
would be so upset as to 
alter the likely outcome 
of any vote relating to the 
business. 
3. That, without a 
dispensation, no member 
of the Cabinet would be 
able to participate on this 
matter.  
4.That the authority 
considers that the 
dispensation is in the 
interests of persons 
living in the authority’s 
area 
5. That the authority 
considers that it is 
otherwise appropriate to 
grant a dispensation. 
 

The power to grant 
dispensations with 
regards to 1, 2 and 3 
has been delegated to 
the Monitoring Officer, 
in consultation with the 
Independent Person, 
with an appeal to the 
Standards Committee 

Page 46



52 
 

Committee Membership Functions Delegation of 
Functions 

   Other functions 
Functions relating to 
standards of conduct of 
members under any 
relevant provision of, or 
regulations made under 
the Council’s Standards 
Arrangements. 

The Monitoring Officer 
has delegated functions 
as set out in the 
Council’s Standards 
Arrangements. 
 
A Sub-
Committee/Hearing 
Panel of the Standards 
Committee of 3 
members will, in 
consultation with the 
Independent Person, 
deal with functions in 
relation to hearings 
relating to Standards of 
conduct of Members 
and co-opted members 

   Power to recommend 
payments or the 
provision of other 
benefits in cases of 
maladministration, etc. 

 

   Power to shortlist and 
interview candidates and 
make recommendations 
to Council regarding 
appointment of 
Independent Persons. 

An ad hoc sub-
committee of three 
Members. 

 
53 

 

A. TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE STANDARDS SUB-COMMITTEE/HEARING 
PANEL  

 
1. In the event that a hearing is required in accordance with the Council’s Standards 

Arrangements, a Standards Sub-Committee/Hearing Panel shall be convened to 
hear and determine any allegations that a member or co-opted member of the 
Council or a Town/Parish Council has failed, or may have failed, to comply with the 
Council’s Code of Conduct. 

 
2. Composition – the Hearing Panel shall comprise 3 members of the Standards 

Committee.  
 

3. Quorum – the quorum for a meeting shall be 3 members  
 

4. Frequency of Meetings – the Standards Sub-Committee/Hearing Panel  shall meet 
as and when required to hear and determine any allegation[s] against an elected 
member or co-opted member of the Council. 

 
 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



May 2014 
Annual Report [v.01]  

1

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 

 

 

 

ANNUAL REPORT TO COUNCIL ON ETHICAL STANDARDS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
May 2014 
  Report 

 
 

APPENDIX 3 (1) 

Page 49



May 2014 
Annual Report [v.01]  

2

Foreword from the Chairman 
 
 

The Annual Report for 2013/14 is comprehensive and I fully commend it to Council. It 
sets out the full Standards process and the range of responsibilities of the Members of 
the Standards Committee, Monitoring Officer and the Independent Person. It also 
demonstrates that South Lakeland is generally a very well run and well behaved District 
in both tiers. Of course there are occasional difficulties and these have been few, 
indeed. They have been determined in accordance with the relevant protocols.  
 
However, there is no room for complacency. We, in the District Council, still have 
Councillors who have not attended a Standards education session. I consider it is our 
Elected Member responsibility to ensure we are fully informed on the latest legislation 
and guidance.  
 
At the final Standards meeting of the year in April, the Committee discussed the future 
composition and meetings of the Standards Committee. The Committee was minded to 
...... These proposals will be considered further during the year 2014/2015. 
 
Finally, I would like to thank everyone who has endeavoured to ensure that South 
Lakeland aims for high standards of behaviour in delivering the services to residents 
and visitors. 
 
 
 
 
 
Cllr Brenda Gray 
Chairman of Standards Committee 
2013/2014 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Page 50



May 2014 
Annual Report [v.01]  

3

1. Introduction – Ethical Standards 
 

The Council has a duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Members 
and co-opted members and the Council aims to have the highest possible ethical 
standards in place across the Council.  
 
This report is the second report on ethical standards under the Council’s new standards 
arrangements following implementation of the Localism Act 2011, and considers ethical 
standards within South Lakeland District Council for the year to May 2014.   
 

2. Code of Conduct 
 
The Council’s revised Code of Conduct was first approved by Council in June 2012.  The 
Code was drafted in consultation with Councils across Cumbria.  The same Code has 
been adopted by all principal authorities in Cumbria, and by the majority of Parish and 
Town Councils. 
 
In June 2013 the Committee undertook a review of the new arrangements, and 
recommended that no further changes be made to the Code at the present time other 
than the revision of the definitions for the seven general principles of public life as 
revised by the Committee on Standards in Public Life in their 14 report on “Standards 
Matter”.  
 
As is custom and practice training has been offered on the Code to all District Members 
and Co-optees and to all Town and Parish Councils. The assistance of the Cumbrian 
Association of Local Councils continues to provide valuable support on considering 
issues around parish and town councils.  
 

3. Role of Standards Committee/Monitoring Officer/Independent Person/ Parish 
Representatives 

 
The Council must demonstrate that it operates high standards of ethical conduct in the 
way it carries out its dealings; this applies to both Members and Officers.  
 
The main function of the Standards Committee is to promote and maintain high 
standards of conduct and it seeks to ensure that the District Council, and the Town/ 
Parish Councils which operate within the District, operate within the expected ethical 
standards of conduct expected from them.  
 
The Committee fulfills this role by promoting good standards of conduct and ensuring 
that training is available on standards of conduct. It also reviews ethical matters, such as 
the Code of Conduct and revisions to/ adoption of Protocols, governing the behavior of 
officers and elected Members. 
 
The Standards Committee is operating under its terms of reference as set out in the 
Council’s Constitution. (see appendix 1) It met on three occasions during this year.  As 
well as reviewing the Council’s Standards arrangements, it undertook its annual review 
of the Parish and District Registers of Interest, and the Employees Register of Interests 
and Gifts and Hospitality. The Committee also commented on the revised Employee 
Code of Conduct and the Protocol on Member/Employee relationships. 
 

Page 51



May 2014 
Annual Report [v.01]  

4

Further information about these meetings, including agendas, reports considered and 
minutes are available on the Council’s website. 

 
Monitoring Officer 
 
Debbie Storr, the Director of Policy and Resources is the Council’s Monitoring Officer 
(MO) and is supported in her role by the Deputy Monitoring Officer, Matthew Neal, 
Solicitor to the Council. 
 
The role of MO is a statutory role and is required to ensure that the Council, its Members 
and officers carry out their functions in a proper and lawful manner. It also has an 
important role to play to ensure that high standards of conduct are promoted and 
maintained throughout the organisation. 
 
In particular, the MO is responsible for establishing and maintaining the register of 
District Councillors’ and Parish Councillors’ interests. She supports the Standards 
Committee and makes sure that the Council acts within the law and ensures the 
Council’s Constitution is effective. 
 
Independent Person 
 
The Council has appointed David Tweddle as its Independent Person and the term of 
this appointment will expire on 30 June 2016. 
 
The Reserve Independent Person, Pat Ford, resigned due to personal commitments 
during 2013.  The Committee discussed the vacancy but resolved not to seek further 
appointment at the present time, but would keep the matter under review. 
 
A Protocol for the Independent Person which sets out agreed ways of working for the 
person operating in that role was developed for and approved by Council in July 2013.  
 

4. Overview 
 

Following the changes brought in by the Localism Act 2011, the workload of the 
Committee has reduced. It continues to ensure that the Council has a robust mechanism 
in place as well as reviewing the Code of Conduct and various Member/Officer 
protocols. In addition, there have been numerous training sessions about the new 
requirements made available to Councillors and co-optees as well as training for 
parishes across the District. This is often bespoke training on request by Parishes 
themselves through CALC; the most recent training request has been from CALC on 
behalf of a Parish Council who asked for general training, including more information on 
Declarations of Interest. 
 
The Committee has also continued with a rolling work programme with the aim of 
keeping the ethical framework under review.  
 
Overall, the evidence suggests that ethical standards in the Authority are sound. The 
intention – of both Officers and the Standards Committee – must be (and indeed is) to 
provide a significant and positive contribution to overall corporate performance. 
 

Page 52



May 2014 
Annual Report [v.01]  

5

Joint working continues with Cumbrian authorities and CALC to ensure consistency of 
approach on the code and practices. 
 

5. Complaints against Members 
 

The Monitoring Officer has received seven written complaints since July 2013 which she 
has considered in consultation with the Independent Person.  One complaint did not 
provide any details and was not investigated further.  Of the other six, four related to 
District Councillor roles, and two related to Parish Councillor roles.  None of these 
complaints were referred for formal investigation, but in three cases an apology was 
given to the complainant(s) and resolved informally.  
 

6. Registration of Interests 
 

The Members’ Register continues to be maintained and updated as and when Members 
notify changes. In addition, all Members are sent an annual reminder to update their 
entries and confirm the accuracy of the Register. The same applies to the Parish 
Councillors’ Register of Interests.  
 
All District Councillors’ interest forms are on the Council’s web page, as are all Parish 
and Town Councillor interests. Publication on the authority’s website and on the relevant 
Parish/Town Council’s website, where they have one, is a requirement under the 
Localism Act 2011. The Registers are also still available to view in hard copy. 
 
Agendas for all District Council meetings contain an item regarding the disclosure of 
interests at the meeting and advising that guidance can be sought, if necessary, from the 
Monitoring Officer prior to meetings. The Minutes of the various Council, Cabinet and 
Committee meetings show that interests are regularly declared by Members and the 
revised rules are bedding in. 
 

7. Other Activity 
 

Monitoring Officer advice has been given to both individual Members and corporately as 
required. Opportunities have been sought and used to deliver proactive advice to 
Members to ensure high standards and avoid possible breaches of the Code. The 
Monitoring Officer, the Deputy Monitoring Officer and other Officers are available to 
advise Members at all reasonable times. 
 
In addition, the Committee has been involved in the review of a number of the Council’s 
Protocols contained within the Constitution. This has ensured that Protocols continue to 
enhance good standards of behavior between and by appropriate officers. 
 

Page 53



May 2014 
Annual Report [v.01]  

6

9. Training 
 
Formal training sessions have been provided as requested for Parish/Town Clerks and 
their members, with whom liaison is maintained. The Monitoring Officer or Deputy have 
also visited Parish Councils when requested to discuss the Code and registers of 
interests.  
 
The District Council and Cumbria Association of Councils have continued to work closely 
together around the provision of training and information to parishes.  
 
Training on the Code of Conduct continues to form part of the Induction Training for new 
Elected Members to the District Council to give them an overview of the Code. Training 
for all Members has been offered on the new Code during 2013. As at the date of writing 
this report 44 of the 51 District Councillors have received this training, together with 16 of 
the Council’s co-optees.   
 
Training on Committees which have quasi-judicial roles e.g. Standards, Planning, 
Licensing and Appeals, is considered essential for Members serving on those 
Committees and is offered annually, either as a refresher or for new Committee 
Members as appropriate. 
 

10. Cumbria Group 
 
The Cumbria and Lancaster Monitoring Officers meet as required, and correspond 
regularly to discuss key issues.    
 

11.       Ombudsman Cases – April 2013  – March 2014 
 

Over the last year there have been changes to the amount of information provided by 
the Ombudsman to local authorities on complaints. As a consequence it’s not possible to 
provide the same analysis as in previous years within this Report.  
 
The Annual Review Letter from the Ombudsman is expected in July 2014. Information 
provided in the last Review Letter (dated 16 July 2013) is attached as an appendix to 
this Annual Report. 
 
There were no findings of maladministration against the Council during the 12 month 
period 2013/14 (as was the case in 2011/12 and 2012/13). 
 
The Committee has also had an overview of the Council Internal Complaints and 
Customer Contacts.  They have received reports and had discussion with the Assistant 
Director (Policy and Performance) on the analysis of information provided. 
 

12. Constitution of Standards Committee 
 

As at May 2014 the membership and functions of the Standards Committee are in 
accordance with the constitution and relevant guidance as agreed by Council on 29 
March 2012. The Committee can co-opt up to 3 Parish Members.  It currently has 2 
Parish Members co-opted onto the Committee with non-voting rights, and 7 District 
Members.  
 

Page 54



May 2014 
Annual Report [v.01]  

7

The Independent Person is able to attend and advise the Committee as required.  
 
Membership during 2013/14 was as follows: 
 
Parish Members 
Robert Judson (member of Windermere Parish Council) 
Colin Westworth (member of Burneside Parish Council) 
David Willacy (member of Sedgwick Parish Council) (until his resignation on 20 
September 2013 - currently still vacant) 
 
Councillors  
Giles Archibald 
Brenda Gray (Chairman) 
John Holmes 
Janette Jenkinson 
Pru Jupe 
Andy Shine (Vice-Chairman) 
Ian Stewart 
 
 

13. Dispensations  
 

With the new regime came new criteria for granting dispensations in respect of any 
interests. The Council no longer has jurisdiction for dispensations requested by 
Parish/Town Councillors and these are now dealt with locally by the Parish/Town 
Councils.  
 
Whilst there has been much discussion over whether dispensations are needed in 
certain cases, any legal interpretation remains to be tested through the courts. We 
continue to watch the national picture to see how it is developing. 
  
No formal requests for dispensation have been considered during 2013/14.  
 

14. Budget 
 

The Standards Committee budget was £4,000 during 2013/14.  The budget assists in 
supporting any investigations and training with regard to standards issues. As no 
investigations were undertaken during 2013/14, there has been no spend from this 
budget. 
 

15. Future Activity 
 

Work Programme 
 
The Work Programme for 2014/15 will include standing annual items but will also evolve 
throughout the year to take account of developing issues pertaining to standards as 
necessary. We will continue to consolidate the new standards regime into current 
working practices. 

 

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



AP|aAPENDIX 

 

16 July 2013 
 

APPENDIX 3 (2) 

By email 
 
 
Mr Laurence Conway 
Chief Executive 
South Lakeland District Council 
 
 
Dear Mr Conway 
 

Annual Review Letter 

 
I am writing with our annual summary of statistics on the complaints made to the Local 
Government Ombudsman (LGO) about your authority for the year ended 31 March 2013. 
This year we have only presented the total number of complaints received and will not be 
providing the more detailed information that we have offered in previous years.  
 
The reason for this is that we changed our business processes during the course of 2012/13 
and therefore would not be able to provide you with a consistent set of data for the entire 
year. 
 
In 2012/13 we received 4 complaints about your local authority. This compares to the 
following average number (recognising considerable population variations between 
authorities of a similar type): 
 
District/Borough Councils-  10 complaints  
Unitary Authorities-   36 complaints  
Metropolitan Councils-  49 complaints 
County Councils-   54 complaints 
London Boroughs-   79 complaints 
 
Future development of annual review letters 
 
We remain committed to sharing information about your council’s performance and will be 
providing more detailed information in next year’s letters. We want to ensure that the data 
we provide is relevant and helps local authorities to continuously improve the way they 
handle complaints from the public and have today launched a consultation on the future 
format of our annual letters.  
 
I encourage you to respond and highlight how you think our data can best support local 
accountability and service improvements. The consultation can be found by going to 
www.surveymonkey.com/s/annualletters  
 
LGO governance arrangements 
 
As part of the work to prepare LGO for the challenges of the future we have refreshed our 
governance arrangements and have a new executive team structure made up of Heather 
Lees, the Commission Operating Officer, and our two Executive Directors Nigel Ellis and 
Michael King. The Executive team are responsible for the day to day management of LGO. 
 

Page 57



Since November 2012 Anne Seex, my fellow Local Government Ombudsman, has been on 
sick leave. We have quickly adapted to working with a single Ombudsman and we have 
formally taken the view that this is the appropriate structure with which to operate in the 
future. Our sponsor department is conducting a review to enable us to develop our future 
governance arrangements. Our delegations have been amended so that investigators are 
able to make decisions on my behalf on all local authority and adult social care complaints in 
England. 
 
Publishing decisions 
 
Last year we wrote to explain that we would be publishing the final decision on all complaints 
on our website. We consider this to be an important step in increasing our transparency and 
accountability and we are the first public sector ombudsman to do this. Publication will apply 
to all complaints received after the 1 April 2013 with the first decisions appearing on our 
website over the coming weeks. I hope that your authority will also find this development to 
be useful and use the decisions on complaints about all local authorities as a tool to identify 
potential improvement to your own service. 
 
Assessment Code 
 
Earlier in the year we introduced an assessment code that helps us to determine the 
circumstances where we will investigate a complaint. We apply this code during our initial 
assessment of all new complaints. Details of the code can be found at: 
 
www.lgo.org.uk/making-a-complaint/how-we-will-deal-with-your-complaint/assessment-code  
 
Annual Report and Accounts 
 

Today we have also published Raising the Standards, our Annual Report and Accounts for 
2012/13. It details what we have done over the last 12 months to improve our own 
performance, to drive up standards in the complaints system and to improve the 
performance of public services. The report can be found on our website at www.lgo.org.uk  
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
Dr Jane Martin 
Local Government Ombudsman 
Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England 

Page 58



Standards Committee Work Programme - July 2012 onwards

Topic Jun-13 Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14

Milestones/ 

Targets/Comments

1 Standards Training for Members 

of Standards Committee

To be arranged to meet 

members requirements 

2 Review of Website Details Ongoing throughout the year

3 Refresher Code of Conduct 

Training for District Councillors      

Annual training

4 Refresher Code of Conduct 

Training for Parish Councillors

On request

5 Inspect Registers of Interests for 

District and Parish Councils

Light touch review post 

election and more 

comprehensive review in 

Autumn.

6 Review Register of Interests & 

Gifts & Hospitality for Employees

Completed October 2013

7 Consider and adjudicate 

Dispensation Requests

As required by date of next 

meeting

8 Conduct twice yearly review of 

Complaints handling and 

Ombudsman reports

SEE REPORT ON THIS AGENDA

9 Review of officer  Protocols Completed October 2013

10 Review whistleblowing policy and 

procedures

BI-ANNUAL REVIEW - DUE 2014

11 Publicise Role and work of 

Standards Committeee

Ongoing

12 Reports from the Monitoring 

Officer on Investigations

As necessary

13 Prepare Annual Report for Full 

Council

SEE REPORT ON THIS AGENDA

14 Review Effectiveness of 

Standards Committee

Part of Annual Report (above)

Page 1 of 1

Item
 N

o.7

P
age 59



P
age 60

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	5 COMPLIMENTS, CUSTOMER FEEDBACK AND COMPLAINTS RECEIVED FROM APRIL 2013 TO MARCH 2014
	March 2014 complaints appendix 1
	March 2014 complaints appendix 2
	March 2014 complaints appendix 3

	6 STANDARDS ARRANGEMENTS AND ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14
	001 003 001 - Review of arrangements - Appx 1(1)
	001 003 001 002 - Review of arrangments - Appx1(2)Code of Conduct
	001 003 001 003 - Review of arrangements - Appx1(3)Investigation of Misconduct Complaints
	001 003 001 004 - Review of arrangments - Appx 1(4)Procedure for Hearings
	001 003 002 - Review of arrangements - Appx 2
	001 003 003 001 - Review of arrangements - Appx 3(1)
	001 003 003 002 - Review of arrangements - Appx 3(2)

	7 STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME

